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UPDATED 1/30/2023 – PLEASE USE THIS RFI DOCUMENT
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Project Name: New Mobile Inspection Application for SDCI

Submittal Schedule 
Table 1: Schedule
	Schedule of Events
	Date

	Request for Information Released
	Thursday, January 19

	Online Q&A for Vendors
	Thursday, January 26, 10:00 AM PT

	Microsoft Teams meeting 
Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 
Meeting ID: 214 865 009 114 
Passcode: fn8coo 
Download Teams | Join on the web
Join with a video conferencing device 
seattle@m.webex.com 
Video Conference ID: 115 021 621 2 
Alternate VTC instructions 
Or call in (audio only) 
+1 206-686-8357,,421918712#   United States, Seattle 
Phone Conference ID: 421 918 712# 
Find a local number | Reset PIN 
Learn More | Meeting options 


	Deadline for Questions
	Friday, January 27, 4:00 PM

	Submit your Response 
	Monday Friday, February 6 10, 4:00 PM



The City reserves the right to modify this schedule at the City’s discretion.  
[bookmark: _Int_ad9Fnpff]Notification of changes will be posted on the City website or as otherwise stated.

RFI Delivery Information
Seattle IT Procurement Manager:  
[bookmark: _Hlk121463575]Jeremy Doane, Jeremy.doane@seattle.gov





1. [bookmark: _Toc292443390]Purpose, Background, and Current Environment.

[bookmark: _Hlk121463988]Introduction 

This Request for Information (RFI) seeks ideas to help Seattle Department of Construction Inspections (SDCI) sort through options and implement a system that would provide a better mobile inspection experience for the staff and communities that are benefitting from SDCI’s code compliance and permitting services. We wish to implement a mobile app that allows our staff to perform their work entirely from their mobile device, so they do not need to return to the downtown office to do data entry from Accela’s back-office product. 

SDCI’s construction focus involves issuing permits and performing inspections for all activities related to remodeling and new building projects. SDCI’s code compliance focus involves performing inspections and investigations for all housing, land use, and permitting complaints. The goal of SDCI is to obtain a tool that provides more transparency, collaboration, and autonomy to these complex services. 

Version of the related systems the City current has:
· Accela 22.1.5
· GIS ArcMap 10.6.1
· GIS Portal 10.8.1

Response Disposition 
This RFI may or may not result in a direct selection contract, depending on whether or not an option to legally enter into a contract exists.


2. [bookmark: _Toc292443396]Instructions 
[bookmark: _Toc521141112][bookmark: _Ref524406138][bookmark: _Toc524484955][bookmark: _Toc524754142][bookmark: _Toc526492387][bookmark: _Toc528557442][bookmark: _Toc529153502][bookmark: _Toc30899402]
Registration into City Registration System.
If you have not previously done so, register at: http://www2.seattle.gov/ConsultantRegistration/.  The City expects all firms to register. Women- and minority- owned firms are asked to self-identify.  For assistance, call 206-684-0444.  
[bookmark: _Toc521141113][bookmark: _Toc524484956][bookmark: _Toc524754143][bookmark: _Ref525440530][bookmark: _Ref525440556][bookmark: _Toc526492388][bookmark: _Toc528557443][bookmark: _Toc529153503][bookmark: _Toc30899403]
Q & A Conference. 
The City has scheduled an optional Q&A conference at the time, date and location in page 1.  Respondents are encouraged to attend, but not required to attend.  The meeting answers questions, begins a discussion, and can address issues.  
[bookmark: _Toc521141117][bookmark: _Toc524484959][bookmark: _Toc524754146][bookmark: _Toc526492391][bookmark: _Toc528557446][bookmark: _Toc529153506][bookmark: _Toc30899404]
Questions.
Respondents can freely submit written or verbal questions to Jeremy Doane, see page 1. 
[bookmark: _Toc524484961][bookmark: _Toc524754148][bookmark: _Ref525440624][bookmark: _Ref525440637][bookmark: _Toc526492393][bookmark: _Toc528557448][bookmark: _Toc529153508][bookmark: _Toc30899406]
Receiving additional information. 
The City Project Manager will post up any new information gained as a result of questions, which may be of interest to all respondents.  The City will post that information on the same Seattle Consultant portal.

Email Submittal.
1. The City seeks email responses by the date and time on page 1.  The City can accept late responses since this is not a formal competition.  However, the City prefers all responses received on the desired date, in order to review and consider all of them equally.

2. Please number your pages sequentially and closely follow the requested formats.

3. The City does not have page limits. 
[bookmark: _Toc524484966][bookmark: _Toc524754153][bookmark: _Toc526492398][bookmark: _Toc528557453][bookmark: _Toc529153513][bookmark: _Toc30899411]Cost of Preparing Submittals.
The City will not be liable for any costs incurred by the Respondent to prepare, submit, and present Submittals, perform interviews and/or demonstrations.
[bookmark: _Toc521141126][bookmark: _Toc524484973][bookmark: _Toc524754160][bookmark: _Toc526492402][bookmark: _Toc528557457][bookmark: _Toc529153517][bookmark: _Toc30899415]Proprietary and Confidential Material.
By submitting a response, the Respondent agrees that the City of Seattle and its member agencies may copy and distribute the response, in whole or in part, for the purpose of facilitating the review of the response. The Respondent consents to such copying by submitting a response and warrants that such copying does not violate the rights of any third party. By submitting one or more responses, the Respondent thereby grants the City of Seattle and its member agencies the right to use the ideas and to adapt or modify the Respondent’s ideas, which are contained in the response.

Requesting Disclosure of Public Records
The City asks interested parties to withhold public disclosure requests until the City completes deliberation. This is intended to shelter respondent materials for a period of time.  However, responses will eventually be public information and the City will respond to public record requests as required by State Law.

Marking and Disclosing Material.
Washington’s Public Records Act (Release/Disclosure of Public Records)

Under Washington State Law (reference RCW Chapter 42.56, the Public Records Act) all materials received or created by the City of Seattle are public records.  Washington’s Public Records Act requires that public records must be promptly disclosed by the City upon request unless a judge rules that RCW or another Washington State statute exempts records from disclosure.  Exemptions are narrow and explicit and are in Washington State Law (Reference RCW 42.56 and RCW 19.108).  

Respondents should be familiar with the Washington State Public Records Act and limits of record disclosure exemptions.  For information, visit the Washington State website at http://www1.leg.wa.gov/LawsAndAgencyRules). 

If you believe records you submit to the City as part of your response or work product are exempt from disclosure, you may request the City not release such records until the City notifies you about the pending disclosure.  

The City will not withhold materials from disclosure because you mark them with a document header or footer, page stamp, or a generic statement that a document is non-disclosable, exempt, confidential, proprietary, or protected.  Identify no entire page as exempt unless each sentence is within the exemption scope; instead, identify paragraphs or sentences that meet the specific exemption criteria you cite in your submittal. Only the specific records or portions of records properly listed in your submittal will be protected and withheld for notice.  All other records will be considered fully disclosable upon request. 

If the City receives a public disclosure request for any records you have properly listed, the City will notify you in writing of the request and postpone disclosure, providing sufficient time for you to pursue an injunction and ruling from a judge.  While it is not a legal obligation, the City, as a courtesy, allows up to ten business days to file a court injunction to prevent the City from releasing the records (reference RCW 42.56.540).  If you fail to obtain a Court order within the ten days, the City may release the documents. 

By submitting, the respondent acknowledges the obligation to identify such records within the response and that the City has no obligation or liability to the Respondent if the records are disclosed.

Ethics Code.
Please familiarize yourself with the City Ethics code:  http://www.seattle.gov/ethics/etpub/et_home.htm.  Attached is a pamphlet for Consultants, Customers and Clients.  Specific question should be addressed to the staff of the Seattle Ethics and Elections Commission at 206-684-8500 or via email: (Executive Director, Wayne Barnett, 206-684-8577, wayne.barnett@seattle.gov 



No Gifts and Gratuities.  
Respondents shall not directly or indirectly offer anything (such as retainers, loans, entertainment, favors, gifts, tickets, trips, favors, bonuses, donations, special discounts, work, or meals) to any City employee, volunteer or official, if it is intended or may appear to a reasonable person to be intended to obtain or give special consideration to the Consultant.  An example is giving sporting event tickets to a City employee on the evaluation team of a solicitation to which you submitted. The definition of what a “benefit” would be is broad and could include not only awarding a contract but also the administration of the contract or evaluating contract performance.  The rule works both ways, as it also prohibits City employees from soliciting items from Consultants.  Promotional items worth less than $25 may be distributed by the Consultant to City employees if the Consultant uses the items as routine and standard promotions for the business.
 
Involvement of Current and Former City Employees.
The City Ethics Code has limits as to involvement of current or former City employees, official or volunteer, that is working or assisting in your response.  Become familiar with those requirements.  For questions, contact the Ethics and Elections Office (see contacts above).

No Conflict of Interest.  
Respondent  (including officer, director, trustee, partner or employee) must not have a business interest or a close family or domestic relationship with any City official, officer or employee who was, is, or will be involved in selection, negotiation, drafting, signing, administration or evaluating Consultant performance. The City shall make sole determination as to compliance.  

3. [bookmark: _Toc292443397][bookmark: _Toc521141123][bookmark: _Toc524484970][bookmark: _Toc524754157]Response Format.
Please submit response as described below.

PLEASE NOTE QUESTIONS FOR SECTION 3 – 5 HAVE BEEN UPDATED ON 1/30/2023

1. Please use the attached spreadsheet to determine if your software can provide the desired functional requirements. The spreadsheet offers two options for each item; through base configuration or through additional customization or development. Please describe how the requirements will be met along with the costs of any extra development. 




2. Use the above spreadsheet to describe how your software can provide the desired functional requirements, listing its features, and special characteristics. Provide the following information to allow the City to assess software and/or services your company provides that would assist in this project. Specifically,

a. What are the software components you are proposing? Describe how the software meets each of the high-level requirements in column E of the attached spreadsheet. Include a description of any additional development costs for additional development or customization.
b. Provide the name, phone number, and email address of a contact at your company from whom the City can request additional information or schedule demonstrations.
c. Have you been awarded a contract for your solution that was the result of an RFP from a government agency? Do you have a contract with a cooperative purchasing agency such as GSA, Omnia, NASPO?
d. Do you have any existing integration with Accela? If so, describe how your software integrates with Accela.
e. Describe your organization and what functions will support the implementation. How many employees are in your organization?

3. [bookmark: _Hlk125030143][bookmark: _Int_AQ2Zi3QF]On a separate page, answer the following questions if you are a software vendor and know your proposed software is new to the City.

1. Interfaces: Describe, at a high level, your architecture for interfacing with other systems
2. Ease of Maintenance: Describe any ease of maintenance considerations for your proposed solution.
3. Describe the administration/security available to control or otherwise restrict access by user or group to portions of the software (screens, workflows, data, etc.). Who maintains users and their permissions/groups? Does the City have to make requests to the vendor to change user groups or permissions?
4. Have you conducted an independent audit of security controls resulting in a SOC2 Type II or ISO27001 audit report, or FedRAMP compliance?
5. How do you support SSO (single sign-on)?
6. How do you protect data in-transit and at-rest?

4. Answer the following questions if you are a software vendor:
1. Describe your licensing model. Is there a limit to the number of users that can be licensed? 
2. Can you or are you willing to offer your software through the City’s resellers, (Zones, SHI, Worldwide Technology)?
3. What type of support services do you offer after Go Live? Do you have separate costs for support work after the implementation of the application?
4. Is the cost of your software tied to the cost of automating a workflow?
5. If the costs are tied to the amount of time the service or software is used, provide your contract definition for those options.
6. The City typically supports four software environments – development, evaluation, test, and production. Does your application support these environments? What additional licensing or costs do you charge to maintain your software in four environments as described?


5. Answer the following questions if you provide professional services:
1. What types of professional services do you provide that would support implementation of this application?
2. Please list any specific suggestions and examples of opportunities not currently realized by the City of Seattle.
3. What is your high-level estimated timeline (based on prior experience) for design, planning, and implementation of the project?
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION







4. Next Steps.

The City Project Manager and a City team will review all responses. The team may ask respondents to meet with the team, via MS Teams, or in-person, to give demonstrations of their software. 

The City will then make a decision about how to proceed, what concepts the City finds to be most appropriate, and whether to pursue a contract.  Such a contract, if any, would likely undergo a solicitation process, although the City may also select a method that can legally waive the solicitation process if available.  
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City Of Seattle 


City of Seattle 


THE SEATTLE ETHICS & ELECTIONS COMMISSION 
 


The SEEC is a seven-member, independent panel 
of citizen volunteers.  The Commission and its staff 
are responsible for administering the City of Seattle 
Ethics, Elections, and Whistleblower Protection 
Codes. Three Commissioners are appointed by the 
Mayor, three by the City Council, and the seventh 
by the other six. They are confirmed by the City 
Council and serve overlapping three-year terms. 


The Commission is supported by a staff of six 
employees who provide training, investigate 
complaints, and issue advisory opinions. 


TRAINING AND INFORMATION 
Ethics training and brochures are available by 
request. Information is also available at the 
Commission website: http://www.seattle.gov/ethics/.  


COMMISSION MEETINGS 
You are invited to attend any Commission meeting.  
Meetings are usually the first Wednesday of the 
month in the Seattle Municipal Tower.   


Copies of the meeting agenda, including time and 
location, are in our office and on our Internet web 
site under Commission/Agendas & Minutes. You 
can also call 206-684-8500 for meeting times and 
locations. 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


This brochure highlights portions of the Seattle 
Ethics Code, SMC 4.16.  The complete law is on the 
City Clerk’s Seattle Municipal Code (SMC) web site, 
http://clerk.ci.seattle.wa.us/~public/code1.htm.  
Copies are also available in the SEEC office. 
 


ETHICS COMPLAINTS AND CONSEQUENCES 
Anyone who feels a City officer or employee has 
violated the Ethics Code may complain to the Ethics 
and Elections Commission. Commission staff will 
investigate whether there is a Code violation. 


If it is found that an employee or official violated the 
City’s Ethics Code, the Commission may fine that 
person up to $5,000 per violation plus costs and 
restitution. The Commission may also recommend 
disciplinary action, including suspension or discharge. 
 
A complaint may be dismissed if there is no violation 
of the Code or if the violation is minor and inadvertent 
or has already been remedied. 


ADVICE 
City employees and officers may seek advice on 
whether a planned action or activity raises issues 
under the City’s Ethics Code. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
ETHICS AND ELECTIONS COMMISSION 


 


Seattle Municipal Tower 
700 Fifth Avenue,  Suite 4010 


 
Mon - Fri: 8am - 5pm 


Tel: 206-684-8500  Fax: 206-684-8590 
E-mail:  ethicsandelections@seattle.gov 


Postal mail:  PO Box 94729, Seattle, WA 98124-4729 
 


Internet:   http://www.seattle.gov/ethics/  
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SEATTLE ETHICS AND ELECTIONS 


COMMISSION 
 


Your advocate for fair, open, and honest government. 







of 
The City of Seattle’s 
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The Code of Ethics 
Seattle Municipal Code (SMC) 4.16 


 


The Seattle Ethics Code was created to inspire 
public trust in City government and ensure that 
City officers and employees are “independent, 
impartial, and responsible to the people.”   
The law is administered by an independent 
commission of citizen volunteers. 


The Code sets ethical standards about work 
activities, business relationships, and the use 
of City resources that apply to all City employees, 
elected officials, and members of most City 
boards and commissions.  


This brochure highlights areas of the Code that 
pertain to contractors, vendors, and regulated 
parties, and also to customers and clients. It is 
one of our efforts to increase awareness of the 
Code and to help you better understand what 
employees can and cannot do. 


If you would like more information or have 
questions, please call us at 206-684-8500  
or visit our web site:   


http://www.seattle.gov/ethics/�
�


This brochure is a general summary of the 
Seattle Ethics Code. If you have questions 
or would like advice on a specific issue, 
please contact Commission staff. 


206-684-8500 
 


HIGHLIGHTS 


THANKING CITY EMPLOYEES 
The best way to thank a City employee is to 
write a letter of praise to the employee’s 
supervisor. City employees may not accept 
gifts, loans or other things of value in 
appreciation for their work or services.  


Example:  Employees responsible 
for purchasing cannot receive 
gifts or premiums for the City  
orders they place.   


Employees may accept promotional items or 
items such as flowers or candy to share with co-
workers or the public, as long as they are valued 
at $25 or less. However, the Commission limits 
the value of such items to $50 from a single 
source in a calendar year.  


SOLICITING ITEMS 
City employees may not ask people with whom 
they do City business to donate items, whether 
for personal, charitable, or other purposes. 


Example: Inspectors may not ask businesses 
they inspect for donations of meeting spaces 
or supplies. 


NO FREE MEALS 
Employees may not accept free meals from 
people with whom they do City business, or from 
people who wish to do business with the City. 


 


Example: An employee who is 
meeting with a vendor or client 
for lunch cannot have the lunch 
paid for by the vendor or client. 


REFRESHMENTS AT MEETINGS 
Employees may accept basic refreshments—
such as coffee, tea, soft drinks, doughnuts, or 
cookies—when attending meetings in your office. 


USE OF CITY FACILITIES AND RESOURCES 
City employees cannot use City 
resources for non-City purposes.  
City property, including City paid 
time, vehicles, and equipment, may 
only be used for a City purpose. 


CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Employees may not take part in City business 
where they, or an immediate family member, 
have a financial or private interest. Employees 
also may not take part in City business where 
they would appear to have a conflict of interest. 


Example: City employees must withdraw from 
a vendor selection process if one of the 
competitors is the employee’s spouse or 
domestic partner, or if a competitor has been 
the employee’s business partner or client 
within the last twelve months. 


ADVERTISING 
Employees cannot use their positions for 
anyone’s private gain or use City resources 
for a non-City purpose. Therefore, they cannot 
hand out or post advertising materials. 


INVITATIONS TO SEMINARS & CONFERENCES 


 


City employees may attend 
educational programs paid for by 
City vendors or potential vendors  


only under limited conditions.  Neither the City 
nor the employee can accept reimbursement for 
expenses incurred that are not allowable under 
the City's Travel Policies and Procedures. In all 
cases, the event must serve a City purpose 


Example: An employee may not attend a 
conference at your expense unless you are 
required by contract to provide training or 
education to City employees, or the employee 
is directed by his or her supervisor to attend. 
Reimbursement for travel or lodging must be 
made to the City, not to the individual. 


AFTER LEAVING CITY EMPLOYMENT 
Employees must wait one year after leaving 
the City before they can (i) assist others in 
proceedings involving their former agency, (ii) 
assist or represent others on matters in which 
they were officially involved, or (iii) compete for 
contracts when they helped determine the scope 
of work or the process for selecting a contractor��


Example: For one year, former employees 
may not assist their new employers in seeking 
permits from the City department they left. 
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New%20Mobile%20App%20Functional%20Requirements.xlsx
Instructions

				City of Seattle RFI# 



				Functional Requirements Response



		Instructions for completing the Functional Requirements Response:





		A.		Select one of the following answers for each individual requirement.  Place a '✔' in the appropriate column next to the requirement in the Requirements worksheet.



				Yes, through Configuration of Base Software - Requirement is met in standard, base software.

				Yes, but Requires Customization or Custom Development - Requirement can be met via custom development work. 
Please add a note if there is any additional cost for this work.

				No - Requirement cannot be met.



		B.		Describe how the requirement is met

				Describe how the software meets the requirement.  

				If the requirement cannot be met with software, described the work around process (if any).

				Please describe any additional development costs that would apply.



		C.		Provide a cross reference number (optional)

				If there is not enough room to fully respond to a requirement,  information may be included in a separate document.

				Provide a cross reference number in this column for any supporting documentation.

				Note that the review team does not guarantee to review all supporting documentation, so provide as much information as possible in this spreadsheet.
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Requirements

				City of Seattle RFI

				Inspection Application Functional Requirements

				The City Of Seattle's Department of Construction and Inspections (SDCI) is seeking to acquire a new mobile inspection application. Ideally the application would have two interfaces as described below:
  
•	An interface for our external customers (green highlighted cells) that allows them to login and view scheduled inspections, manage records, perform remote/video inspections, result inspections (3rd Party inspectors), upload documents, etc. 
  
•	An interface for SDCI's internal staff to perform their work in-person, as well as to conduct their work through remote/video inspection sessions. We would like the app to be a powerful tool that can enable the inspectors to perform all of their field work without the need to return to the downtown office to do data entry from Accela’s back-office product.

				For information on how to complete this worksheet, see the INSTRUCTIONS worksheet.

												Does the software meet the requirement?

		Req#		Category		Internal / External / 
Both		Priority Ranking:
High
Medium
Low		Functional Requirements		Yes, through Configuration of Base Software		Yes, but Requires Customization or Custom Development		No		Describe How the requirement is met
Please describe any additional development costs that would apply.		Cross Reference # (Optional)

		1		Base Requirements		Both		Required		Already is integrated with Accela or can be integrated with Accela.

		2		Base Requirements		Both		High		Can be configured to accommodate multiple inspection disciplines with differing business rules/processes.

		3		Base Requirements		Both		High		Provides a single interface for performing remote, in-person, or self-guided inspections.

		4		Base Requirements		Both		Required		Vendor provides support to maintain compatibility with future Accela and device OS updates.  This service is included as part of the subscription and/or licensing.

		5		Base Requirements		Both		Required		Solution is IOS, Android, and Windows compatible.

		6		Base Requirements		Both		High		Can send SMS or other instant communication between customer and inspector.

		7		Base Requirements - External		External		High		Allows customers to create a dashboard to select and track records, manage inspections, search for inspections, add new inspection requests, view scheduled inspections, pay fees, upload documents, add contacts.

		8		Base Requirements - External		External		Low		Can provide links to existing City/SDCI help pages. 

		9		Base Requirements - Internal		Internal		Required		Has the same or similar basic in-person inspection features and functionality as Accela Mobile, e.g. Can create, schedule, transfer, result, show assigned inspection list/map, search records/inspections, provide a detailed inspection summary, etc.

		10		Base Requirements - Internal		Internal		High		Inspection results are uploaded to Accela as soon as cellular or wi-fi connection is established; including but not limited to: record updates (Custom Field, Custom List, Activities, etc.), inspection details (status, notes, time entry, etc.), and photos.

		11		Base Requirements - Internal		Internal		Required		Data needed for daily inspections can be downloaded to the mobile device and updated regardless of available connectivity while the inspector is in the field.

		12		Base Requirements - Internal		Internal		High		Vendor can provide ArcGIS APIs to integrate with COS GIS map.

		13		Base Requirements - Internal		Internal		Medium		Includes inspection task manager that allows staff to configure their inspection job list so they can set the standard date range of their scheduled inspections.

		14		Base Requirements - Internal		Internal		Low		Allows inspectors to send reports by email.

		15		Checklist		Internal		High		Includes configurable task lists/checklists with dependent dropdown lists. Allows photos to be added to task lists/checklist items.  

		16		Custom Functionality		Internal		High		Prompts inspectors to schedule a follow up inspection.

		17		Custom Functionality		Internal		Low		Can be configured to include links to other applications.

		18		Document Uploads		Internal		High		Takes photos with date/timestamp. Option is available to combine multiple photos into single PDF.

		19		In-Person - Inspection Routing		Internal		Medium		Suggests recommended day’s route (optimized to reduce travel time) and allows on-demand route updates throughout the day.

		20		Microsoft Office Integration		Internal		Low		Can update Microsoft Outlook Calendar with scheduled inspections.

		21		Record Management		Internal		High		Can be customized to display specific child record information when accessing/opening certain record types. 

		22		Record Management		Internal		High		Can be configured to display specific record details by record type.

		23		Record Management		Internal		High		Uses Accela's Record Activities portlet allowing inspectors to add field notes to the record.

		24		Record Management		Internal		High		Can display all Conditions that apply to a record.

		25		Record Management		Internal		High		Integrates with Accela Workflow and can be configured or scripted to update workflow.

		26		Record Management		Internal		Medium		Integrates with Accela Contacts and provides the ability to view, add, and update transactional contacts on records. Adds any new or updated contacts to the Contact Reference database.

		27		Record Management		Internal		High		Provides the inspection history of a record selected from the job list.

		28		Remote Inspection		Internal		High		Provides a method of validation that the customer is physically at the permit location at the beginning of the remote inspection.

		29		Remote Inspection - External		External		High		Limits the types of records and inspections that can be scheduled for remote type inspections by external customers.

		30		Remote Inspection - External		External		High		Requires external customers to complete a checklist validating the inspection is for a conforming site and to complete an inspection agreement form.

		31		Remote Inspection - External		External		High		Requires the external customer to confirm that they will have a licensed electrical contractor present before they are able to schedule a remote inspection for an Electrical record.

		32		Remote Inspection - External		External		Low		Provides the ability for customers (3rd Party Inspectors) to log into the app and result inspections

		33		Remote Inspection - Inspector Controls		Internal		Low		Provides the inspector with a split screen they are able to view the record documents side-by-side with the remote inspection.
   • Able to toggle between documents, record, and video, can zoom in on and navigate plans, can reposition screens

		34		Remote Inspection - Inspector Controls		Internal		Medium		Provides the ability to capture photos or video throughout remote session and save to the documents to the record.

		35		Remote Inspection - Inspector Controls		Internal		Medium		Provides ability for the Inspector to add a second inspector into the remote inspection session.

		36		Remote Inspection - Inspector Controls		Internal		Low		Tracks and saves the duration of an inspector's remote inspections.

		37		Remote Inspection - Inspector Controls		Internal		Medium		Allows the inspector to control the remote customer's camera, flashlight, and microphone.

		38		Reports		Internal		High		Runs PDF reports that can be emailed to external customers.

		39		Reports		Internal		High		Runs reports from the application, whether or not Wi-Fi is available.

		40		Record Management		Internal		High		Allows changes to be made to Custom Fields or Custom Lists, which can then be used with scripts to invoice fees to the records

		41		Record Management		Internal		High		Able to perform record searches with user selected parameters (specifically address or parcel information).
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RFI Q&A.docx
Questions From the RFI Q&A Session

1. What are the features that Accela's mobile app doesn't have that you need? 

Please see the attached Excel spreadsheet: “Accela Mobile vs RFI Requirements.xlsx”. This lists the requirements and specifies what is not in the Accela mobile app. 

The Accela Mobile app is a great out-of-the-box app for inspectors or staff who only need to perform a minimum of data entry tasks. Our field activities and our record structure are highly complex and require many processes outside of Accela to support our day-to-day operations. Although Accela Mobile has some better features than the previous Accela Inspector app, its user interface is less user friendly and still lacks any provisions for custom configuration to meet our needs. We also need an application that can perform remote video inspections as well as integrate with our own internal Esri/ArcGIS emergency response dashboard; both of which are far outside Accela Mobile’s current capabilities.

2. Do you need to submit the RFI response in two separate documents, one that associates to the Excel spreadsheet and one that goes through the rest of the questions?

Yes please - ideally one document that answers the questions in the Excel file, and one document that answers the rest of the questions.

3. Will the recording be available to vendors? 

Yes, a link will be provided.  

4. There appear to be some requirements that are website related versus a mobile solution. Are these requirements that aren't being used in ACA currently? Is ACA going to continue to be used in addition to the functionality listed in the requirements? Are these requirements related to a customer facing portal which customers use to access data from inspections? 

We are not asking for any website solutions. Our ask is specifically for a mobile app for internal staff and a mobile app for our external customers. The external app is a new concept and right now we assume this will be a separate app. We are just seeking information to see if an external app is possible and to see how much it could improve the external customer’s experience beyond the ACA. 

The idea behind the external mobile app is to bring the contractors, homeowners, and any other person involved with the inspection process closer to their project. The ACA does not have the ability to connect the customer to their assigned inspector through SMS, it can’t connect through a remote video inspection, and it does not currently allow users to add records to a dashboard unless they are connected through Accela’s complex accounts and contacts. We are hoping to gain information to see if vendors can provide a solution that allows this, and any other helpful features, to be done through a mobile app.

5. What is the volume of inspections that come through the division?

Over 200,000 inspections are performed by SDCI every year. This is split between about 100 individual inspectors working out of 12 different disciplines.

6. How many inspection types are there? What are the inspection categories and any specific requirements around those categories?

[bookmark: _Hlk125715235][bookmark: _Hlk125956479]In Accela we have approximately 40 inspection groups and 200 different inspection types. The groups are assigned to record/permit types. Our record structure is complex and has hundreds of variations of record types. For more detailed information about the types of permits we issue and what type of inspections SDCI performs, please visit:

· Permits We Issue (A-Z)- 	https://www.seattle.gov/sdci/permits/permits-we-issue-(a-z),

· Inspections- 		https://www.seattle.gov/sdci/inspections

· Renting- 		https://www.seattle.gov/sdci/renting. 

Any scripting or configuration for these inspections is currently handled through Accela’s AA. At this time, we are not sure if any of that would change with the introduction of a new mobile app. But we would like to learn from the vendors what their knowledge of the Accela’s architecture is, and how they have leveraged this to create a better inspection experience for their customers staff and the contractors, homeowners, and other parties that need to collaborate with inspectors to complete their projects. 

7. What are the acceptance criteria for, as an example, homeowner requested inspections or electrical inspections? Could we get a list so we can do a bit more research on specific workloads associated?

Any scripting or configuration, for scheduling or resulting, for these inspections is currently handled through Accela’s AA. At this time, we are not sure what would change with the introduction of a new mobile app. 

· Most inspectors will use Accela AA to research other permit records that belong to a specific project. 

· These records can be directly related, or flagged, to each other Accela AA or they exist in the same parcel/Dev Site. 

· They look these up to check statuses, fees, and other proprietary notes in those records. 

· They then look at their list of assigned inspections and create an ordered list based on location or agreed times that were promised to the customers.

· Mostly performed in Accela AA, only some inspectors use Accela Mobile for this.

· Frequently, while in the field, the inspectors must search for additional permits because the customer did not schedule for all permits at the location or scheduled the wrong types. 

· Only some inspectors use Accela Mobile for this. Otherwise, this is added to paper reports and completed later in the office.

· Most inspections will be resulted simply with a new status and a free form comment.

· Depending on the inspector, this is done by leaving paper on site, and completing later, or by Accela Mobile.

· Some inspection groups create correction letters that get postal and/or electronically mailed to the customers. 

· The correction letters are currently created via checklists that exist outside of Accela. (It is a requirement for our new app implementation, to explore integrating checklists into AA and a mobile solution that provides a real-time correction letter process.) 

· At the end of the day, many inspectors are required to return to a laptop to create the previously mentioned correction letters, run reports, change data on the records based on their inspections, scan/upload documents, result inspections (because they used paper in the field), result workflow tasks, create new records, and other related tasks. 



Each specific workflow for every inspection scenario has not been documented. There are 21 documented high-level workflows, but there are other workgroups that were not involved in this early work. It is estimated that there are at least 40 additional workflows that could be documented. This does not include variations due to remote video inspections. This information can be viewed in the attached document: “Inspection Services Workflows.pdf.” 

[bookmark: _Hlk125715112]For more detailed information about the types of permits we issue and what types of inspections SDCI performs, please see the links provided in the answer to question 6.

8. Third-party vendors are mentioned through the specifications. How many different accounts will be rolled out? How many inspectors will be using the new application?

Internally, SDCI employs about 100 individual inspectors working out of 12 disciplines. If other departments adopt the app this could easily double. 

The third-party inspectors refer to special inspection agencies, boiler insurance companies, or any other external stakeholder that are asked or required by SDCI to perform and submit documentation about an inspection. The results they need to provide are similar to a typical internal inspection or, more commonly, by uploading a document. Both of these actions are done directly to a record in Accela. 

Boiler insurance inspectors perform the same inspections as our internal boiler staff, but since they are external to the city, they cannot access the system to result inspections. They send in reports that our staff use to result the inspections on their behalf. 

Special inspection agencies need to submit reports about the items that they inspect in the field, but since they are external, they are required to submit these through the ACA. The documents are generally submitted through a central person, but they can be by individual inspector. Their access is controlled by their ACA account and contacts on the records. The document route requires massive storage and does not provide easy access to inspection details.

These stakeholders may not be contacts on records or have ACA accounts, but we still want them to be provided a way to perform these actions. With that said, we are unable to provide a specific number of public user accounts at this time. Again, this is a request for information so we can learn what is feasible. We would like to learn from the vendors what the cost would be per account, license, or any other method of billing. 

9. Regarding multiple disciplines and templates or checklists: How are the inspectors currently performing field inspections? What are they leveraging from the Accela mobile app and its limited functionality versus the requested requirements? Are they using paper as part of the process?  Do they have to come into the office to do data entry? 



Because no tool offered by Accela is a single solution for all our needs, we are using a mixture of Accela Mobile, Inspector, and back-office AA to perform our work. Yes, also have many staff who use paper processes as well. Using multiple or inadequate systems to perform our daily tasks is taxing the organization with tremendous training needs. We wish to solve this through the addition of a single app that can be configured to meet the needs of each of our inspection disciplines. 



Please see the narrative in the response to question 7 for a description of common inspector tasks and a description of how we currently perform our inspections. 



10. Are there security roles and permissions for who can perform what type of inspection? Do the roles and permissions restrict inspectors from performing inspections outside of their discipline?

There are configurations in Accela’s AA that handle the differing user rights that grant access to the inspection and record types. It doesn’t seem that this will need to be addressed by the mobile app, be we are happy to review any solutions that you can provide through the app. 

11. What is the current workflow for scheduling inspections?

There are currently 4 different ways that inspections can be scheduled:

· Live call center where staff receive phone calls and manually schedule them in AA.

· 24hr automated IVR phone scheduling.

· ACA scheduling. 

· By an inspector through Accela’s mobile app. (this is less common)

We prefer the customers to request their inspection through any of these paths versus direct request through an inspector. While it’s not a primary ask in the RFI, we are interested if you have any scheduling functions in your product.

12. Is moving to a platform other than Accela an option?

Moving away from Accela is out of scope. Were just looking to gain information about a possible mobile app that is a compliment to, and integrates with, Accela. 

13. What is the plan for Accela about storage of shareable assets like video inspection documentation? Will the provider be storing the data, or will the data and files be stored in Accela? 

We are not specifically pursuing data storage outside of Accela at this time, but the purpose of this RFI is to learn about new things that will improve our current services, so it is desirable to learn about options for storage. One of the goals of this RFI is to fill gaps in our own knowledge.

With our current implementation of Accela, virtually everything is in Oracle Web Center content. Accela also uses web center.

14. Confusion regarding questions in the section, “3. Response Format” in the RFI application:

There were some boiler plate questions that were removed to simplify the responses from our vendors. Sub sections 2, 3, and 5 have been modified as follows:

· Sub section- 2.

· d. and e. were removed. 

· a. through e. have been revised.

· Sub section- 3. 

· 1. All points removed except f. and g. These are now 1. and 2.

· 2, 4, 6, & 7 were removed.

· Items 3,4,5, & 6 are new and/or revised.

· Sub section- 5.

· All items removed and replaced with revised 1 through 3.

These changes are captured in the attached: “SDCI Edits SDCI-New-Mobile-Inspection-Application-RFI.docx” document.



15. Are you looking for the payment of fees to reside inside both of those technologies? Or are you looking for a potential additional payment processor, or if the mobile app needed to integrate into what was already existing with paying fees?

Payments are made through an integration between Accela and KUBRA.  Right now, our intention is to keep the handling of payments within the current application.  However, we are interested in allowing customers to pay fees through the external mobile app. 

Through the RFI we intend to fill gaps in our own knowledge by learning what options you can provide to make fee payments work through your mobile solution. 

16. Can you extend the RFI response period?

The response will be extended to February 10, 2023.

17. Please clarify the requirement that users should be able run reports from the application whether or not Wi-Fi is available. 

We are interested in knowing if reports can be generated from the mobile application. The reports would use data that was downloaded or available on the handheld as of the last connection to the network.

18. Elaborate on what the expectation is for integrating with ArcGIS. What data is needed?  What is the current workflow?

The City currently has an emergency response ArcGIS dashboard that some departments are currently setup with. They have a mobile app that can access our GIS to add and modify data. When they connect via cellular or wi-fi, the data uploads and the central command sees their changes. SDCI doesn’t currently have any integration into this. To fit with the theme of a single inspection application, we want our daily mobile inspection app to integrate with the City’s ArcGIS.

19. What software is currently handling payment of fees? Do you want it to stay inside that application?

Payments are made through an integration between Accela and KUBRA.  Right now, our intention is to keep the handling of payments within the current application. But we are happy to learn through this RFI what solutions our perspective vendors can provide for making payments easier for our external customer experience. 

20. What type of security requirements need to be met?



At a minimum:

· SOC2 Type II or ISO27001 audit report or documented FedRAMP compliance

· Single Sign-on (SSO)

· Encrypted data in-transit and at-rest





Questions Received by Email

1. Accela has a mobile app that would deliver the requirements outlined. Is there any reason why Accela isn’t being currently used whether it was a business or technical decision?



A number of the requirements in this RFI are not features in the Accela mobile app.  Please see file embedded in the section above for question #1.



2. Could you reiterate the final decision/stance on the payment portal and the requirements surrounding "paying fees"?



Payments are made through an integration between Accela and KUBRA.  Right now, our intention is to keep the handling of payments within the current application. But we are happy to learn through this RFI what solutions our perspective vendors can provide for making payments easier for our external customer experience.

Through the RFI we intend to fill gaps in our own knowledge by learning what options you can provide to make fee payments work through your mobile solution. 

3. What type of security requirements need to be met for Cloud Based SaaS products?



At a minimum:

· SOC2 Type II or ISO27001 audit report or documented FedRAMP compliance

· Single Sign-on (SSO)

· Encrypted data in-transit and at-rest



4. What is the user count? How many unique individuals will need a license?

Internally, SDCI employs about 100 individual inspectors working out of 12 disciplines. If other departments adopt the app this could easily double. SDCI also uses third-party inspectors to perform certain types of inspections. The number of third-party inspectors, or other external users, who would need access the application has not yet been determined. Through this request for information, we want to learn what is feasible. We would like to learn from the vendors what the cost would be per account, license, or any other method for billing of subscriptions.

5. Can you describe the situation in which an "in person inspection" would be used vs a "remote video inspection"?



An in-person inspection means that the city inspector is on-site performing the inspection with or without the customer present. 



A remote video inspection means that the customer is on-site using their mobile device as a live connection to the city inspector who is at a remote location. The customers device needs to be connected to the internet and have a functioning microphone and camera to make this connection possible. 



Please see the answers to 6 & 7 of the Q&A response for more inspection information. 



6. How are you currently performing in person vs. remote inspections?



For in-person and other general inspection information, please see the answers to 6 & 7 of the Q&A response.



We currently do not have an automated process for our customers to schedule remote video inspections. This is handled manually by word-of-mouth requests, and analysis of records to see if they qualify for this type of inspection. We are currently using common, off-the-shelf, conferencing software such as Facetime or Google Duo to connect with our customers for remote video inspections.



7. What do you envision your future remote inspection state looking like?

Most of our specific features are captured in the requirements spreadsheet, but here are a few high-level thoughts to bring it together:

· The customer has the choice and ability to schedule these.

· There are “bumpers” in place to limit the scope of what can be done remotely.

· The inspector has full control of keeping any inspection remote or in-person and has the ability to fluidly move between these choices in the field.

Currently we view video inspections simply as an additional option for our customers or staff for re-inspections and simple projects where an inspector has already been present. They will be subject to some business rules and inspector judgement before they can be scheduled or completed. 

8. How many inspection workflows do you have? How many disciplines?

There are 12 inspection disciplines. There are more than 12 inspection workflows as there are multiple inspection types within each of the disciplines. 

Each specific workflow for every inspection scenario has not been documented. There are 21 known documented high-level workflows, but there are other workgroups that were not involved in this early work. It is easily estimated that there are at least 40 additional workflows that could be documented. This does not include variations due to remote video inspections. This information can be viewed in the attached document: “Inspection Services Workflows.pdf.” 

Please see the answers to Questions 6 & 7 of the Q&A meeting above for additional information.

9. What is the current inspection scheduling process like?

There are currently 4 different ways that inspections can be scheduled:

· Live call center where staff receive phone calls and manually schedule them in AA.

· 24hr automated IVR phone scheduling.

· ACA scheduling. 

· By an inspector through Accela’s mobile app. (this is less common)

We prefer the customers to request their inspection through any of these paths versus direct request through an inspector. While it’s not a primary ask in the RFI, we are interested if you have any scheduling functions in your product.

10. Could you elaborate on what “an inspection agreement form” is for your organization?



The idea of this requirement is to create a way to weed out any requests for remote video inspections on sites or permits that are prevented by our business rules. Included in this requirement is creating a way to ensure that the customer has read and agreed to our rules before submitting an inspection request for a remote video inspection.



11. How do you envision external stakeholders accessing and reviewing completed inspection results of your system? What permissions do you want external individuals to have and what should they be limited from doing?



The customers should be able to view inspection results from the ACA or their mobile app. There are difficulties with accessing a full list of a record’s inspections with all time/date, inspector, status, and comment data with the current version of ACA. We would like to improve the customer experience through the use of a mobile app. Since inspection history is public record, there are no limitations to that data. 



12. What is a 3rd party inspector? Is this a contracted inspector for your organization?


Third-party inspectors refer to special inspection agencies, boiler insurance companies, or any other external stakeholder that are asked or required by SDCI to perform and submit documentation about an inspection.



Please see the answer to Question 8 in the Q&A responses for more detailed information. 



13. Is Salesforce a current software being used by the city? In any/which departments?

Currently, Salesforce is used by the Seattle Public Utilities (SPU) Department. SDCI uses Zendesk.



Additional Information
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Requirements





			Req#			Functional Requirements			In Accela mobile app?


			1			Already is integrated with Accela or can be integrated with Accela.			YES


			2			Can be configured to accommodate multiple inspection disciplines with differing business rules/processes.			NO


			3			Provides a single interface for performing remote, in-person, or self-guided inspections.			NO


			4			Vendor provides support to maintain compatibility with future Accela and device OS updates.  This service is included as part of the subscription and/or licensing.			YES


			5			Solution is IOS, Android, and Windows compatible.			NO


			6			Can send SMS or other instant communication between customer and inspector.			NO


			7			Allows customers to create a dashboard to select and track records, manage inspections, search for inspections, add new inspection requests, view scheduled inspections, pay fees, upload documents, add contacts.			NO


			8			Can provide links to existing City/SDCI help pages. 			NO


			9			Has the same or similar basic in-person inspection features and functionality as Accela Mobile, e.g. Can create, schedule, transfer, result, show assigned inspection list/map, search records/inspections, provide a detailed inspection summary, etc.			YES


			10			Inspection results are uploaded to Accela as soon as cellular or wi-fi connection is established; including but not limited to: record updates (Custom Field, Custom List, Activities, etc.), inspection details (status, notes, time entry, etc.), and photos.			YES


			11			Data needed for daily inspections can be downloaded to the mobile device and updated regardless of available connectivity while the inspector is in the field.			YES


			12			Vendor can provide ArcGIS APIs to integrate with COS GIS map.			NO


			13			Includes inspection task manager that allows staff to configure their inspection job list so they can set the standard date range of their scheduled inspections.			NO


			14			Allows inspectors to send reports by email.			NO


			15			Includes configurable task lists/checklists with dependent dropdown lists. Allows photos to be added to task lists/checklist items.  			NO


			16			Prompts inspectors to schedule a follow up inspection.			NO


			17			Can be configured to include links to other applications.			NO


			18			Takes photos with date/timestamp. Option is available to combine multiple photos into single PDF.			NO


			19			Suggests recommended day’s route (optimized to reduce travel time) and allows on-demand route updates throughout the day.			NO


			20			Can update Microsoft Outlook Calendar with scheduled inspections.			NO


			21			Can be customized to display specific child record information when accessing/opening certain record types. 			NO


			22			Can be configured to display specific record details by record type.			NO


			23			Uses Accela's Record Activities portlet allowing inspectors to add field notes to the record.			NO


			24			Can display all Conditions that apply to a record.			YES


			25			Integrates with Accela Workflow and can be configured or scripted to update workflow.			YES


			26			Integrates with Accela Contacts and provides the ability to view, add, and update transactional contacts on records. Adds any new or updated contacts to the Contact Reference database.			NO


			27			Provides the inspection history of a record selected from the job list.			YES


			28			Provides a method of validation that the customer is physically at the permit location at the beginning of the remote inspection.			NO


			29			Limits the types of records and inspections that can be scheduled for remote type inspections by external customers.			NO


			30			Requires external customers to complete a checklist validating the inspection is for a conforming site and to complete an inspection agreement form.			NO


			31			Requires the external customer to confirm that they will have a licensed electrical contractor present before they are able to schedule a remote inspection for an Electrical record.			NO


			32			Provides the ability for customers (3rd Party Inspectors) to log into the app and result inspections			NO


			33			Provides the inspector with a split screen they are able to view the record documents side-by-side with the remote inspection.
   • Able to toggle between documents, record, and video, can zoom in on and navigate plans, can reposition screens.			NO


			34			Provides the ability to capture photos or video throughout remote session and save to the documents to the record.			NO


			35			Provides ability for the Inspector to add a second inspector into the remote inspection session.			NO


			36			Tracks and saves the duration of an inspector's remote inspections.			NO


			37			Allows the inspector to control the remote customer's camera, flashlight, and microphone.			NO


			38			Runs PDF reports that can be emailed to external customers.			NO


			39			Runs reports from the application, whether or not Wi-Fi is available.			NO


			40			Allows changes to be made to Custom Fields or Custom Lists, which can then be used with scripts to invoice fees to the records			NO


			41			Able to perform record searches with user selected parameters (specifically address or parcel information).			NO
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